THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

---

APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

Michael G. Nettles, Circuit Court Judge

---

Case No. 2018-CP-400-6344

Appellate Case # 2019-001488

---

MB Hutson/ MB Hudson

Appellant,

v.

Penn America Insurance  
Company, Global Indemnity  
Group, Inc., Timothy J.  
Newton, Esq., J.R. Murphy,  
Esq., John Doe #1 and John  
Doe #2,

Respondents.

**RECEIVED**

MAR 03 2020

---

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT SC Court of Appeals

---

MB Hutson  
Post Office Box 2755  
Orangeburg, South Carolina 29516-2755  
(803) 308 - 2714  
Appellant / PRO SE

##

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE COMMON PLEAS COURT ERR IN FAILING TO RULE IN SUPPORT OF EVIDENCE PRESENTED THAT CLEARLY REVEALS THAT RESPONDENTS WERE *FULLY AWARE THAT EXTRINSIC FRAUD WAS PERPETRATED UPON THE COURT* AND WAS UNDERLYING AND CLOUDING THE STATE AND FEDERAL CASES AGAINST THIS APPELLANT WHICH CAUSED RESPONDENTS (AS APPELLANT'S COUNSEL AND INSURERS) AND THEREBY THIS APPELLANT, NOT TO SUCCEED IN THOSE COURTS AS A DIRECT RESULT OF RESPONDENTS (ALL ATTORNEYS REPRESENTING THE INSURANCE CARRIERS, BOTH DIRECTLY AND/OR INDIRECTLY) NOT HAVING EXECUTED THEIR DUTY TO EXPOSE EXTRINSIC FRAUD WHICH THEY KNEW EXISTED AND CONTINUED TO DAMAGE THIS APPELLANT/THEIR CLIENT AND THEREBY NOT PROPERLY DEFENDING THIS APPELLANT?
2. DID THE COMMON PLEAS COURT THEREFORE ERR, IN FAILING TO HOLD THESE ATTORNEYS, OFFICERS OF THE COURT IN THE STATE OF S.C. TO BOTH THE STANDARDS OF THE LAW OF THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA AND THE S.C. RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT?
3. DID THE COMMON PLEAS COURT ERR IN FAILING TO REVIEW ALL THE EVIDENCE AND RELYING EXCLUSIVELY ON THE DEFENDANTS (ALBEIT OFFICERS OF THE COURTS) TO PRESENT TOTALLY TRUTHFUL INFORMATION AND OPINIONS, KNOWING THEY WERE THE DEFENDANTS?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 28, 2018, M B Hutson brought this action in Richland County, S.C. alleging extrinsic fraud against Penn America Insurance Company and Global Indemnity Group Insurance (PAIC), J. R. Murphy, Esq., Timothy J. Newton, Esq. (and 2 John Does) as they allowed Extrinsic Fraud Upon the Court (of which they were fully aware) to overshadow and thwart justice for this Appellant because they were unwilling to execute their duty to expose it and defend their client, this Appellant. Respondents **answered** Pro Se Hutson's Complaint in the lower court in separate responses *alleging* Hutson's claim against them was barred by a settlement release between Respondents and Hutson in a former case. A signed settlement agreement is a powerful document that requires the demonstration of an extreme condition in order to render it null and void. Extrinsic Fraud qualifies as an extreme condition to render a settlement agreement null and void by a court.

Appellant submitted evidence that Respondents had discovered fraud, namely Extrinsic Fraud, (Exhibit 4.1-4.3 in Common Pleas Court) which was perpetrated by the Plaintiffs of the previous cases and wherein Respondents had a *duty to disclose and defend* this Appellant as the Extrinsic Fraud upon the court was not eligible for res judicata as the court and judge were not apprised of the fraud within the documents behind the Settlement Agreement which he signed into a Consent Order which hid the existence of third parties who were not given voice and those third parties held long term "rights to use" the property brought before the court. Respondents refused to take the necessary action to expose, challenge, and have the courts "set aside" the Order in which the Extrinsic Fraud occurred, even though they were "defending" the victim of

that Extrinsic Fraud as the original perpetrators were suing their client over related issues .

Subsequently, and after the Sellers who perpetrated the Fraud upon the Court had drug this Appellant through an unjust eviction and both SC state and Federal Court (as a third party defendant) when those undisclosed holders of long term leases sued the Sellers in a federal class action lawsuit—and won--this case was brought by Appellant against Appellant's Insurance Carriers and their attorneys. It came before Judge Nettles on June 26, 2019, and judgment was entered on July 18, 2019. Due to the Court's failure to mail Pro Se Hutson a copy of the Order written by Stegmaier, Esq. representing the Insurance Companies until September 16, 2018, Stegmaier, Esq. filed for a dismissal in the Appellate Court since Pro Se Hutson, who had filed within the required 30 days and noticed all parties of his appeal appropriately, was unable to file the actual Order for Penn America from the lower court in the Appellate Court (due to the lower court's error) until he received it by mail, as required for a Pro Se. The Appellate Court reviewed this situation and DENIED Stegmaier's Request for a Dismissal on grounds of untimeliness.

## ARGUMENTS

- I. BECAUSE RESPONDENTS COULD HAVE RAISED FRAUD IN HIS PRIOR BREACH OF CONTRACT SUIT AGAINST APPELLANT, HE IS BARRED BY RES JUDICATA FROM BRINGING THIS SUIT.
  
- II. BECAUSE FRAUD MUST BE PROVED BY CLEAR AND CONVINCING EVIDENCE, THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT CHARGED THE JURY THAT THE RESPONDENT MUST PROVE FRAUD BY A PREPONDERANCE OF THE EVIDENCE.

Penn America Insurance Company / Global Indemnity Group, Inc., now collectively referring to themselves as "PAIC," insured the Appellant. They secured an "umbrella" carrier" (TORUS, now known as Starstone). PAIC engaged Murphy and Grantland, P.A., (M&G) of Columbia, S.C. to represent PAIC's obligation to Appellant in both the State and Federal Court cases. All cases stemmed from contracts between TLC Holdings, LLC (hereinafter TLC) and this Appellant.

Appellant entered into those contracts (CP Exhibits 5.0 and 6.0), namely the Lease Purchase Agreement (LPA) and the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement (MIPA) for the explicit and therein stated purpose ( p. 3, ¶ 2) "to develop and construct condominiums or other residential dwelling structures...on certain portions of the unimproved Premises."

PAIC collectively held a contractual obligation to defend the Appellant in the resulting SC state and in the 2nd Federal Court District (Charleston) where Appellant was being sued in Federal Court as third party defendant by TLC (Sellers). J.R. Murphy, Esq. and Timothy J. Newton, Esq. handled those cases for M&G, engaged by PAIC. Carlock, Copeland & Stair, LLP (CC&S) was also engaged by Respondents. CC&S attorneys Laura Patton, Esq. and her associate Chip Emge, Esq. prepared documents in Appellant's behalf and appeared in that capacity in depositions and in both the state and federal courts.

The Federal Class Action suit was an action of the holders of Retail Membership Agreements (RMA's) contractually owning up to two lifetimes of "rights to use" the land on which Sellers had intentionally failed to record their long term leases *and which* Sellers (TLC) were contracted through the LPA to this Appellant, permitting sale and housing development. NOTE: The holders of the RMAs had not been given voice, nor opportunity to appear, at an attempt in state court by the Sellers

to evict this Appellant a few years earlier for non-performance of contract (within the designated time frame-- written by Seller's attorneys ) for the land. In the federal court class action suit ALL the land was deemed "unmarketable." In settlement, the RMA holders were awarded seven figure damages in that class action suit (2:14-CV-01583-DCN-MGB) several years after this Appellant signed the LPA and MIPA.

Case law clearly establishes that the duty to defend requires insurer to bring any counterclaim that is factually "inextricably intertwined" with the underlying claim. (Safeguard Scientifics, Inc. CenterCore, Inc., and NordSystems, Inc. v. Liberty Mutual Ins. Co., Civ A. No. 90-6592). (766 F. Supp. 324, 333-334 (E.D. Pa.1991).

Furthermore, case law establishes that an insured may also recover consequential bad faith damages if the insured can show bad faith or unreasonable action by the insurer in its handling of the claim: Ocean Winds Council of Co-Owners, Inc. v. Auto-Owners Ins. Co., 241 F. Supp. 2d 572 (D.S.C. 2002); Tadlock Painting Co. v. Maryland Casualty. Co., 473 S.E.2d. 52 (S.C. 1965); Mixson, Inc. v. American Loyalty Ins., 562 S.E. 2d 659 (S.C. Ct. App. 2002) (advancing a novel theory to deny a claim); Varnadore v. Nationwide Mut. Ins. Co., 345 S.E.2d 711 (S.C. 1986).

Case law irrefutably requires that the Insurer should have considered extrinsic facts when determining whether a potential for coverage existed because, "the extrinsic facts available to Burlington indicated the potential for coverage, which is all that was necessary to trigger its duty to defend". Gray v. Zurich Ins. Co., 419 P.2d 168, 176 (Cal. 1966).

In a "decision from the Ninth U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals, two judges on the appellate panel reversed summary judgment for an insurer that had failed to consider facts extrinsic to the

underlying complaint when denying coverage to the policyholder. According to the majority, a police report and witness statements provided by the insured offered an alternative theory of the plaintiff's case that removed it from the application of a policy exclusion. Because the extrinsic facts available to the insurer indicated the potential for coverage, that was sufficient to trigger the duty to defend," the court held. (Exhibit 23, pp. 1-3; Burlington Ins. Co. v. CHWC, Inc., No. CV 11-02926 R.

Furthermore, in *Bulloch v. United States*, the Court of Appeals stated "Fraud upon the court is fraud which is directed to the Judicial machinery itself; it is not fraud between the parties or fraudulent documents, false statements or perjury...it is where the judge has not performed his Judicial function-thus where the impartial functions of the court have been directly corrupted," (*Bulloch v. United States* 763 F.2d 1115, 1121 ( 10th Cir. 1985 ) (Emphasis mine.).

Extrinsic fraud (fraud upon the court) "induces a person not to present a case or deprives a person of the opportunity to be heard." (*Chewning v. Ford Motor Co.*, 579 S.E.2d 610 (S.C.2003); *Rozier v. Ford Motor Co.*, 576 F.2d 1332, 1338 ( 5th Cir. 1978); *Hilton Head Ctr. of South Carolina v. Public Service. Commission* 294 S.C. 9, (1987); 362 S.E. 2d 176. The RMA owners holding "rights to use" (whether all or portions) of the TLC land under contract for development were not allowed "voice" in the case wherein the "Settlement Agreement" and "Consent Order" originated, depriving them of the opportunity to be heard, as the Plaintiffs (TLC) did not inform them, nor the court of their existence, thereby denying the RMA holders knowledge of and voice in the actions being taken. Therein the Extrinsic Fraud Upon the Court, was perpetrated by TLC and their attorneys, and intentionally shrouded by TLC and their attorneys behind an illegal "res

judicata.” Since that Extrinsic Fraud against the court, it has been claimed by TLC and these Respondents to be valid protection for their criminal negligence.

Intrinsic fraud "is fraud which was presented and considered in the trial" and which "misleads a court in determining issues and induces the court to find for the party perpetrating the fraud," I'd. (Citing Hazy v. Pruitt, 339 S.C. 425, 529 S.E. 2d 714 (2000); Hilton Head Ctr., 294 S.C. At 9, 362 S.E. 2d at 176). The essential distinction between intrinsic and extrinsic fraud is the ability to discover the fraud. (1) Equitable relief from a judgment "is granted for extrinsic fraud on the theory that the fraud prevented a party from fully exhibiting and trying his case. Therefore, in federal court, the RMAs' class action suit was honored by Judge Norton and they were awarded damages of approximately \$2M. By this action, Judge Norton recognized the Extrinsic Fraud in the Lower Court which did not inform them, nor giving them "voice" at the hearing because relief was granted to those parties. Not every fraud is sufficient to move a court of equity to grant relief from a judgment. Extrinsic Fraud is sufficient for the court to grant relief, as demonstrated in 2:14-CV-01583-DCN-MGB. Generally speaking, in order to secure equitable relief, it must appear that the fraud as extrinsic or collateral to the question secure equitable relief. (Bowman v. Bowman, 357 S.C. 146 (2004); 591 S. E. 2d 654; 152), intrinsic fraud is not sufficient for equitable relief." Therefore extrinsic fraud *was* an underlying crime by TLC and their attorneys as Laura Paton, Esq. (hired by Respondents) clearly and repeatedly states:

*“Mr. Hutson is entitled to be compensated pursuant to S.C. CODE SECTION 39-5-140 (a) for the above described actual, incidental, consequential, and special damages as well as costs, interest and attorney's fees, and to recover three (3) times these damages by reason of the knowing and willful nature of the unfair and deceptive acts by Defendants and any attempts in*

*any contractual agreement for the limitation or disclaimer of warranties, or any other waiver or other limitation, are null, void, unenforceable, and subject to rescission as a matter of law.” (p. 21 # 107).*

Hutson, Appellant, (1) is entitled to compensation, (2) to date has received none, and (3) these Respondents had every opportunity to expose and counter sue TLC, BUT TOOK NO ACTION TO DO SO.

"The Attorney's Duty to the Court against Concealments, Nondisclosure and Suppression of Information is Coextensive with the Duty Not To Allow Fraud To Be Committed upon the Court." "The extent to which it is regarded as counsel's duty to advise the court as to matters relevant to the proper decision of the case of which opposing counsel is ignorant or which he has overlooked turns on the degree to which the old idea that litigation is a game between the lawyers has been supplanted by the more modern view that the lawyer is a minister of justice." H. Drinker, Legal Ethics 76 (1953) on Sullins v. State Bar (15 Cal. 3d 609 (1975) 542, P.2d 631, 125 Cal. Rptr. 471). This MUST be CORRECTED. The lawyers have NOT administered JUSTICE.

In some jurisdictions, an insurer's duty to defend depends solely on a comparison of the allegations of the complaint to the policy language. See, e.g. Lamar Homes, Inc., v. Mid-Continent Casualty Co., 242 S.W .3d 1 (2007). An insurer has a duty to defend if the face of the complaint alleges something covered and does not allege an exclusion to coverage. Extrinsic facts not alleged in the complaint do not affect the insurer's duty to defend in these jurisdictions. See Kvaerner Metals Div. of Kvaerner U.S., Inc. V. Commercial Union Ins. Co., 908 A.2d 888, 896-7 (PA 2006). Courts refer to this approach as the four-corners, or sometimes the eight-corner, rule.1. GuideOne Elite Ins. Co. v. Fielder Rd. Baptist Church, 197 SW3D 305, 307 ( Tex. 2006).

Other jurisdictions do not rely solely on a comparison of the allegations of the complaint to the pony language. These jurisdictions also require that, where the complaint does not trigger the duty to defend, an *insurer must conduct a reasonable investigation of the surrounding facts* to determine whether it has an obligation to defend. If the insurer's investigation reflects their awareness of extrinsic fraud, or that facts exist that would trigger the duty to defend despite the absence of allegations in the complaint, the insurer has a duty to defend. See e.g., *Mortgage Exp., Inc. V. Tudor Ins. Co*, 771 N.W. 2d 137, 147 ( Neb. 2009) ("In determining its duty to defend, an insurer must not only look to the petition or complaint filed against its insured, but must also investigate to ascertain the relevant facts from all available sources.") This WAS NOT DONE.

Respondents engaged Paton and received copies of her work. They were fully aware that the Sellers of the insured business property had committed fraud and extrinsic fraud upon the court that was shrouding the current cases at that time. Each lawyer fully and clearly understood the situation.

*(NOTE: Appellant reminds the honorable court, of all the TV commercials that talk about how one can never trust an insurance company nor their lawyer. I now understand why. PAIC, Newton and Murphy have not been truthful with the Common Pleas Court and I entrust this to the Appellant court. Appellate deserves justice and seeks to present his case to a Jury. Appellant is confident that a jury will rule in Appellant's favor.)*

**I now present my proof of argument to the honorable Appellant Court:**

The United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit has delineated five (5) elements of conduct that constitutes extrinsic fraud upon the Court:

1. On the part of an officer of the court,
2. That is directed to the judicial machinery' itself,
3. That is intentionally false, willfully blind to the truth, or is in reckless disregard for the truth,
4. That is a positive averment or is concealment when one is under a duty to disclose, and
5. That deceives the courts.

The Lease Purchase Agreement (LPA) (Exhibit #5.0 in Richland County Common Pleas Case # 2018-CP-4006344) prepared by Sellers/TLC's attorneys states on page four ( 4 ): “If Purchaser terminates this Agreement, except for such obligations of the parties as are expressly stated to survive the termination of this agreement, AND on page five ( 5 ), (third sentence from the bottom) "If Purchaser terminates this Agreement pursuant to this Section 1.5, then neither party shall have any further obligation under this Agreement, except for such obligation of the parties as are expressly stated to survive the termination of this Agreement.”

During, and prior to, Appellant's Lease Purchase Agreement, (hereinafter LPA), the Big Water Resort (hereinafter BWR) (campground) was the business of a ‘membership campground.’ BWR operated on the property owned by Sellers, TLC Holdings, LLC (hereinafter TLC). However, TLC and their lawyers required Appellant (Buyer) to purchase all RMAs (known as the Membership Interest Purchase Agreement,--hereinafter “MIPA”) simultaneously with executing the LPA. This brought the responsibility to honor all family memberships for up to 70 years on the Appellant—or any Buyer-- with legally no land to operate that business on. In actuality, those 700+ family owned, long term “right to use” membership contracts (RMAs) had:

- (A) never been recorded, a violation of SC statute # 27-33-30, and

(B) BWR had no long-term lease from the landowners (TLC) with which to guarantee the land to be available to those RMA owners on that TLC owned land. *TLC had refused to give BWR a long term lease agreement, thus creating a hidden \$22M dollar\* obligation to Appellant.* TLC had already pre-collected all payments for up to two life times.

The fraud was that TLC fully understood that they could never sell the property to this Appellant (or any Buyer) for development due to the RMAs creating title defects that TLC hid from the Court and this Appellant (until RMA families sued TLC in a 2014 federal class action suit.

Although Appellant had a Title Search executed through a reputable law firm to Williamson Research Services, the title showed no encumbrances since TLC intentionally never recorded any of the hundreds of family memberships, nor any lease for the BWR business. This effectively hid the title defect they created, which was further masked by RMAs annual “renewal fees” paid by RMA families for annual use each January. Appellant proceeded accordingly toward development, unaware of those hidden title defects, and was paying thousands to the Sellers/TLC to maintain the LPA while getting approvals to develop. All the while, TLC (Sellers and their attorneys) wanted some innocent person to execute both the LPA and the MIPA. TLC and their lawyers then sued Appellant for default since Appellant could not close. A well orchestrated scam...on the Buyer (this Respondent) and on the Insurance Companies.

As later proved in a Federal Class Action lawsuit brought by the owners of the RMAs, none of the property stated in the LPA as “for sale” was sellable due to those title defects created by the RMAs and the owner(s) of the business (BWR) which was obligated to honor the family memberships for seventy (70) years while the TLC Sellers and Lawyers simply planned to walk

away, fully understanding that Appellant was going to default and be sued. . . until that Federal Class Action lawsuit.

TLC collected approx. \$2M dollars from PAIC (insurance) through fraud claiming that Appellant had ‘slandered’ Sellers by notifying all RMA holders that TLC was defrauding them and had contracted to sell the land for development. This resulted in the RMA holders filing their federal class action lawsuit. Federal Court verified that the RMA holders had been defrauded.

It was years after the time Appellant signed the LPA and MIPA in 2010 and well after TLC had drug this appellant through state and federal court, that Appellant found out that TLC and their attorneys created Fraud upon the State Court, but he, too, had been defrauded by TLC. All the attorneys knew it though. The Sellers’ attorneys prepared all contracts (TLC Owner, Richard Clark, in deposition, (3/18/2015 Page 97, ll. 15-17) states:

*“Tom Harper” (Esq.) “prepared all these documents, has prepared the documents for the lease purchase agreement, the sale of the membership interest.”).*

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