RECEIVED

Mar 08 2021

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

The Honorable Michael G. Nettles, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2019-001488
Civil Action Case No. 2018-CP-40-06344

MB Hutson/MB Hudson,Appellant,

v.

Penn America Insurance Company,
Global Indemnity Group, Inc.,
Timothy J. Newton, Esq., J.R. Murphy, Esq.,
John Doe #1, John Doe #2,Respondents.

**FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS
PENN AMERICA INSURANCE COMPANY
AND GLOBAL INDEMNITY GROUP, INC.**

CHRISTIAN STEGMAIER
S.C. Bar No. 68648
cstegmaier@collinsandlacy.com
LAURA R. BAER
S.C. Bar No. 101076
lbaer@collinsandlacy.com

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

“[T]he covenant of good faith and fair dealing extends not just to the payment of a legitimate claim, but also to the manner in which it is processed.” Mixson, Inc. v. American Loyalty Ins. Co., 349 S.C. 394, 400, 562 S.E.2d 659, 662 (Ct. App. 2002). Under South Carolina law, an insurer acts in bad faith when there is no reasonable basis to support the insurer’s decision to deny benefits. Cock–N–Bull Steak House, Inc. v. Generali Ins. Co., 321 S.C. 1, 6, 466 S.E.2d 727, 730 (1996). “If there is a reasonable ground for contesting a claim, there is no bad faith.” Crossley v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 307 S.C. 354, 360, 415 S.E.2d 393, 397 (1992).

“South Carolina courts have found that where a policy provides an insurer with the right and duty to defend, the insurer has ‘the right and the duty to control the defense until such time as it is determined that it has no liability insurance coverage.’” Founders Ins. Co. v. Richard Ruth’s Bar & Grill LLC, 2016 WL 3219538, at *9 (D.S.C. June 8, 2016) (quoting Allstate Ins. Co. v. Wilson, 193 S.E.2d 527, 530 (S.C. 1972)). “If courts allowed insureds to create a genuine issue of material fact on a bad faith processing claim by engaging in a ‘nit-picky’ analysis of each action the insurance adjustor took or did not take in handling claims, every bad faith action would survive a motion for summary judgment.” Id. There must still be an evaluation of the reasonableness of the insurer’s conduct...” Id.

With respect to PAIC’s refusal to either prosecute Hutson’s counterclaims against TLC within the ongoing litigation or attempt to reopen the prior ejectment proceedings, there is no evidence that this decision was unreasonable. As an initial matter, there is no evidence that any extrinsic fraud on the courts was committed in the procurement of the 2012 Settlement Agreement or Consent Order, which included a release of Hutson’s claims of fraud and misrepresentation

against TLC and its members. On the contrary, it appears that Hutson and his representatives were well aware of potential encumbrances during the original land deal. (See R. p. 643, Newton Ex. Z: E-mail from Realtor, Nov. 11, 2010; R. p. 1258, PAIC Ex. B: Affidavit of Thomas L. Harper, Jr. with attachments).

In the 2014 Order, Judge James found that Hutson's claims against TLC with respect to the original land deal were raised in the 2012 proceedings and resolved by virtue of the 2012 Settlement Agreement and Consent Order. (R. p. 455, Newton Ex. G: James 2014 Order; see R. p. 180, Hutson Ex. 9.0: Settlement Agreement, §23; R. p. 189, Hutson Ex. 10.0: Consent Order). Judge James enforced the Settlement Agreement and Consent Order, finding that the alleged misstatements or omissions were known to Hutson when he entered into the 2012 settlement. (R. p. 455, Newton Ex. G: James 2014 Order). Thus, Hutson—represented by counsel, H. Freeman Belser—asserted his claims of extrinsic fraud in 2014 and lost.

In the Class Action, Hutson asserted counterclaims against TLC and its members for breach of contract, breach of contract accompanied by fraud, fraud and fraud in the inducement, negligent misrepresentation, constructive fraud, breach of covenant of good faith and fair dealing, and negligence, recklessness, willfulness, and wantonness, and defamation. In their motion for summary judgment, TLC and its members argued that these claims were all barred by res judicata and the Release settling the state court action. Hutson averred that an exception to the res judicata doctrine applied because the Release was procured by fraud. In granting summary judgment against Appellant on the counterclaims, Judge Norton cited both the 2012 Consent Order and Judge James' 2014 Order. Judge Norton found Hutson's claim that he did not have knowledge to pursue a fraud claim against TLC and its members until after the entry of the Settlement Agreement to be belied by the record. He found there to be no dispute that Hutson knew about the lifetime membership agreements when he purchased BWR and that the remainder of Hutson's allegations

of fraud related to the original transaction rather than to the procurement of the Release. As a result, Judge Norton found no basis to set aside the Release. (See R. p. 368, Newton Ex. A: Class Action R&R; R. p. 386, Newton Ex. B: Norton Order).

Hutson asserted similar counterclaims against TLC and its members in the Defamation Action, including fraud, negligent misrepresentation, defamation, libel per se, breach of contract, breach of contract accompanied by a fraudulent act, violation of SCUPTA, amalgamation/alter ego/piercing the corporate veil. In granting TLC's motion for summary judgment on Hutson's counterclaims, Judge Cothran noted the prior state and federal court orders in the case. Hutson again asserted that the Release provisions were unenforceable due to fraud. Just like the federal court, Judge Cothran found that Hutson "failed to demonstrate or even allege any fraud that would bar the application of the Settlement Agreement." Rather, the fraud complained of related to the original transaction, not the Release. Thus, like the federal court, Judge Cothran found Hutson's claims barred by res judicata. He wrote: "Hutson's counterclaims either were or could have been raised in the prior state court litigation, and he released all such claims by virtue of the Settlement Agreement." (R. p. 396, Newton Ex. C: Cothran Order). Hutson was not entitled to have PAIC attempt to revive his procedurally barred and frivolous claims against TLC. See generally Robinson v. Estate of Harris, 388 S.C. 630, 641, 698 S.E.2d 222, 228 (2010) ("If a judgment procured by extrinsic fraud could have been avoided if the challenging party exercised due diligence, a court generally will not grant relief from the judgment."(emphasis added)); id. ("The doctrine of laches is applicable in determining whether an action is time-barred even if extrinsic fraud is established.").

Any contention that PAIC's settlement of the claims in the Class Action and Defamation was unreasonable is similarly without merit. Despite his lack of personal liability under the settlements that were entered, Appellant would have forced PAIC to pursue the equitable

indemnification case to trial in federal court and continue its post-trial appeal of the state court defamation action. In essence, Appellant claims that PAIC overpaid in the settlement. Here, there was no contractual requirement for the insured's consent to settle. Rather, the policy provides: "We may, at our discretion, investigate any "occurrence" and settle any claim or "suit" that may result." (R. p. 1164, PAIC Ex. A, Insurance Policy). Further, PAIC had a duty to settle the claims if settlement was "the reasonable thing to do." Doe v. S.C. Med. Malpractice Liab. Joint Underwriting Ass'n, 347 S.C. 642, 649, 557 S.E.2d 670, 674 (2001).

Moreover, several other jurisdictions have held that where an insurance contract provides that the insurer may, as it deems appropriate, settle any claim or action brought against its insured, a cause of action alleging breach of the insurer's good faith will not lie where the insurer has settled such a claim within the monetary limits of the policy. See, e.g., Marginian v. Allstate Ins. Co., 481 N.E.2d 600 (Ohio 1985); Casualty Ins. Co. v. Town & Country Pre-School Nursery, Inc., 498 N.E.2d 1177 (Ill. App. Ct. 1986); Feliberty v. Damon, 129 A.D.2d 207 (N.Y. App. Div. 1987); Shuster v. South Broward District Physicians' Professional Liability Insurance Trust, 570 So.2d 1362, 1366 (Fla. 4th DCA 1990). While Hutson may disagree with the business decision PAIC made to settle the cases against him, it was made after the disposition of Hutson's counterclaims on summary judgment and within the policy limits. Thus, there is no evidence that the settlements were entered in bad faith.

Lastly, to the extent Appellant alleged that the declaratory judgment action regarding coverage was brought in bad faith, Appellant failed to articulate how or why that filing was unreasonable. (See R. p. 198, Hutson Ex. 11.0: Coverage Action, Compl.).

This Court should accordingly affirm the grant of summary judgment in favor of PAIC on Appellant's bad faith cause of action.

C. Summary judgment was properly granted on the fraud and misrepresentation claims where there was no evidence (a) that PAIC or its agents made any material or false representation to Appellant, (b) PAIC or its agents failed to exercise due care; (c) that Appellant relied on such representation, or (d) that Appellant suffered an injury or loss.

The trial court found that Appellant's fraud and misrepresentation claims centered on an e-mail sent from Tim Newton to Appellant regarding the possible existence of an argument regarding extrinsic fraud. (R. p. 1, PAIC Order, p. 18); (see R. p. 588, Newton Ex. V: E-mail from Newton to Hutson, Aug. 13, 2018 10:50 a.m.). Hutson argued to the trial court that Newton wanted Hutson to file an action to set aside the 2012 Settlement Agreement and Consent Order, as it would have benefited and provided leverage in PAIC's defense of the other cases. (R. p. 1312, line 2 – p. 1314, line 19). Importantly, however, Appellant never claimed that anything written in the letter to him by Newton was false. Instead, Appellant argued in his Amended Complaint that everything in Newton's e-mail was true. (See Amd. Compl. ¶¶37-49). Additionally, Appellant never filed any subsequent action to set aside the Agreement and Order. (See Amd. Compl. ¶35). Thus, the trial court ruled that "regardless of its truth or falsity, Hutson failed to allege any reliance upon the representation." (R. p. 1, PAIC Order, p. 18). Further, the trial court found that Hutson had not been injured, as PAIC paid the federal sanctions awarded against him and settled the two lawsuits without any personal liability to Hutson. (R. p. 1, PAIC Order, p. 18). Consequently, the trial court found that Hutson could not support his claims for fraud or misrepresentation.

Appellant appeared to allege the similar but distinct causes of action for both fraud and negligent misrepresentation. (See R. p. 65, Amd. Compl. ¶33-49). In order to prevail on a claim for fraud a plaintiff must prove: (1) a representation; (2) its falsity; (3) its materiality; (4) either knowledge of its falsity or a reckless disregard of its truth or falsity; (5) intent that the representation be acted upon; (6) the hearer's ignorance of its falsity; (7) the hearer's reliance on its truth; (8) the hearer's right to rely thereon; and (9) the hearer's consequent and proximate injury.

Ardis v. Cox, 314 S.C. 512, 515, 431 S.E.2d 267, 269 (Ct.App.1993). “A complaint is fatally defective if it fails to allege all nine elements of fraud.” Id. In order to prevail on a claim for negligent misrepresentation, a plaintiff must prove (1) the defendant made a false representation to the plaintiff, (2) the defendant had a pecuniary interest in making the statement, (3) the defendant owed a duty of care to see that he communicated truthful information to the plaintiff, (4) the defendant breached that duty by failing to exercise due care, (5) the plaintiff justifiably relied on the representation, and (6) the plaintiff suffered a pecuniary loss as the proximate result of his reliance on the representation. Brown v. Stewart, 348 S.C. 33, 42, 557 S.E.2d 676, 680-81 (Ct. App. 2001). Thus, a key difference between fraud and negligent misrepresentation is that fraud requires the conveyance of a known falsity, while negligent misrepresentation is predicated upon transmission of a negligently made false statement. Id.

The e-mail sent from Newton to Hutson on August 13, 2018, upon which Appellant fixates, provided:

I need to remind you that I don't represent you and I can't represent you because I represent Penn-America. To the extent there is a common interest, I note the following:

...

15. I can see how you could argue that the Consent Order is invalid because it attempts to adjudicate the rights of parties not before it. If you were ordered to develop property that was subject to lifetime use rights, that probably should have been brought to the court's attention. Furthermore, I can see how you could argue you did not realize you were being obligated to violate the rights of the campground members by developing since TLC never specified exactly which property was subject to the campground memberships.

16. It's hard to see why TLC and its lawyers should not have, in good faith, simply told you (and the court) that the Big Water Resort property was undeveloped because it was already obligated to double lifetime memberships as a private club. It appears that could easily have averted the entire fiasco. Since attorneys were involved, and it resulted in your inability to present your case in court, and

possibly led to the sanctions order and judgment against you, there might possibly be extrinsic fraud on the court to support setting aside the Consent Order. See Chewning v. Ford Motor Co., 354 S.C. 72, 579 S.E.2d 605 (2003).

However, that is something you would have to follow up with on your own. I can't undertake that. Possibly Frank could file a motion if Penn-America approves it, but he and I both have agreed to put everything on hold until the mediation.

I highly recommend that you get a lawyer involved, even if it's a pro bono lawyer. If you need the documents supporting the above, let me know.

(R. p. 588, Newton Ex. V: E-mail from Newton to Hutson, Aug. 13, 2018 10:50 a.m.). Hutson never claimed that anything in Newton's e-mail was false or that he relied upon it.

Notably, this correspondence was sent well after Hutson's counterclaims in the Class Action and Defamation Action were disposed of on summary judgment on May 20, 2016 and March 2, 2017. (See R. p. 386, Newton Ex. B: Norton Order; R. p. 396, Newton Ex. C: Cothran Order). Newton explained the context of the e-mail to the trial court, which was that Appellant came to Newton stating that he had new evidence that all of the property sold to him by TLC was encumbered by the campground memberships. Appellant contended this new evidence would support a claim of more than just fraud in the original land deal and constituted extrinsic fraud upon the court. (R. p. 1330, line 13 – p. 1336, line 15). Newton's explanation is supported by a review of the other e-mail correspondence between Newton and Appellant, which reveals that it was Appellant who suggested and believed filing a separate action to set aside the 2014 Consent Order would benefit him. (See Newton Ex. V: Newton/Hutson Corr.). Newton reiterated in another e-mail to Appellant, sent the same day, that all proceedings were "on hold" until mediation, which was to Appellant's benefit since they hoped to negotiate a settlement that would not expose Appellant to personal liability. (R. p. 588, Newton Ex. V: E-mail from Newton to Hutson, Aug. 13, 2018 1:23 p.m.).

Newton sent a follow-up letter to Hutson on November 8, 2018, rejecting Hutson's demand for \$500,000 from PAIC and reiterating PAIC's position that it would not pursue any action to reopen and set aside the judgment in the Ejectment proceeding, though Hutson could take any action individually that he desired. (R. p. 172, Hutson Ex. 7.0: Newton Letter).

In Appellant's brief, he contends that "Respondents misrepresented to Appellant the material fact that they were defending Appellant in those cases, when, in fact (due to known extrinsic fraud it was impossible for these Respondents to effectively defend this Appellant because they chose NOT to expose the Fraud Upon the Courts by those suing this Appellant under the cloak of Fraud and res judicata." (Br. of Appellant, p. 29-30). The evidence presented to the trial court reflected that PAIC did provide a defense to Appellant in both the Class Action and the Defamation Action, both of which were resolved within policy limits. The fact that Appellant had previously waived his claims against TLC and was previously unsuccessful in attempting to set that waiver aside is not the fault of PAIC. Appellant's perception that a true "defense" would have garnered millions of dollars to Hutson on his counterclaims is entirely baseless. Respondents, on the other hand, need not speculate on whether Appellant's counterclaims were meritorious, as they were raised *pro se* in both of the underlying actions and determined to be barred by res judicata.

This Court should accordingly affirm the grant of summary judgment in favor of PAIC on Appellant's fraud and misrepresentation causes of action.

D. Summary judgment was properly granted on the negligence claim where there was no evidence that PAIC breached any duty to Appellant or caused any harm to Appellant.

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